
 
 
Democratic Services Section    
Chief Executive’s Department 
Belfast City Council 
City Hall 
Belfast  
BT1 5GS 
 
 
9 August 2013 
 
 
 
MEETING OF TOWN PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

(To which Members of the Development and Health and Environmental Services 
Committees are invited to attend.) 

 
 
Dear Alderman/Councillor, 

 

The above-named Committee will meet in the Lavery Room (Room G05), City Hall on 

Thursday, 15th August, 2013 at 4.30 pm, for the transaction of the business noted below. 

 

You are requested to attend. 

 
Yours faithfully 
 
 
PETER McNANEY 
 
Chief Executive 
 
 
 
AGENDA: 
 
1. Routine Matters   
 
 (a) Apologies   

 
 (b) Declarations of Interest   

 
2. Major Planning Application under Article 31 - 7 Airport Road  (Pages 3 - 18) 
 
 Deputation from representatives of Bombardier. 

 
3. Routine Correspondence  (Pages 19 - 20) 
 
 (a) Major Planning Application under Article 31 - Lands at 88 to 104 

Andersonstown Road  (Pages 21 - 22) 
 

4. Request for Deputation   
 
 (a) Request from Sans Souci Residents' Association   

 

 
 

Document Pack



 
- 2 - 

 
 
 
 
 
 
5. New Applications  (Pages 23 - 42) 
 
6. Deferred Items Still Under Consideration  (Pages 43 - 50) 
 
7. Streamlined Planning Applications - Decisions Issued  (Pages 51 - 60) 
 
8. Schedule of Applications  (Pages 61 - 70) 
 
 
 



                                                      
Belfast City Council 

 
 

 

 
Report to: Town Planning Committee 
 
Subject: Article 31 application  - Combined Heat and Power (CHP) 
                                Generating Station at Airport Road, Belfast 
 
Date:  15 August 2013 
 
Reporting Officer: Suzanne Wylie, Director of Health and Environmental Services, ext     

3260  
  
Contact Officer: Keith Sutherland, Urban Development Manager, ext 3478 
 

 

1 Relevant Background Information 

1.1 
 
 
 
 
 
1.2 
 
 
 
 
 
1.3  
 
 
 
 
1.4  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

On 13 December 2012, Bombardier Aerospace submitted a planning application 
(Z/2012/1387/F) to the Department of Environment for the proposed construction and 
operation of a combined heat and power (CHP) generating station for the treatment of 
refuse derived fuel (RDF) by gasification at 7 Airport Road, Belfast.  A Supporting and  
Environmental Statement was also submitted. 
 
The proposed site is currently undeveloped scrub land bounded by a fence.  The site 
is located within Belfast Harbour Estate, an established industrial area and is 
accessed from Airport Road.  Significant land uses in the surrounding area include the 
George Best Belfast City Airport to the north, Victoria Park to the south and Belfast 
Lough to the west. 
 
The proposed CHP plant is designed to convert refuse derived fuel into heat and 
power for use in the Bombardier site in an effort to reduce their energy costs. It is 
proposed that surplus will be exported to the National Grid. Further details of the 
proposal are outlined in Appendix 1.  
 
On the 26th March 2013 the Department wrote to the City Council informing them that 
Article 31 of the Planning (NI) Order 1991 had been applied to the application, 
designating it as one of major importance as it considers the development if 
permitted: 

• be of significance to the whole or substantial part of Northern Ireland  

• affect the whole of a neighbourhood.  
The notification requested the Council’s views on the application and also informed 
the Council that before the application is determined the Department will either cause 
a public inquiry to be held before the Planning Appeals Commission or will 

Agenda Item 2Page 3



 
 
 
1.5  
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.6 
 
 
 
 
1.7 

alternatively issue to the applicant a Notice of Opinion indicating how it considers the 
application should be decided.  
 
This correspondence (See Appendix 2) was initially considered by this Committee on 
the 18th April 2013 and members requested that the applicant attend a future meeting.  
Members of both the Development and the Health and Environmental Services 
Committee have also been invited to hear this application.  
 
Council response to date 
 
Prior to the application being designated Article 31, the DOE issued a consultation 
request to the Council’s Environmental Protection Unit in January 2013 as part of the 
statutory consultation process.  The Council’s Environmental Protection Unit provided 
a technical response on the 15th February 2013.  (This is attached as Appendix 3) 
 
On the 26th February 2013 the Department wrote to the Council requesting that the 
views of arc21 be sought in respect of this application.  arc21 subsequently submitted 
comments which were forwarded to the Planning Service on the 14th May 2013.  

 
 

2 Key Issues 

 
2.1  
 
2.2 
 
 
 
 
2.3 
 
 
 
2.4 

 
The team from Bombardier will provide a presentation on the proposal. 
 
Whilst a technical environmental health response has already been provided to the 
Planning Service, the DOE is also seeking a fuller Council response as they have 
now determined that the application will be dealt with under Article 31 of the Planning 
Order.  
 
Members are requested to note the content of the presentation and to consider if they 
would like to request officers to prepare a draft Council response to this application 
for consideration at a future meeting of this committee. 
 
Officers from the Council’s Health and Environmental Services Department and 
Planning and Transport team will be present at the meeting should members require 
any further information.   
 

 

3 Resource Implications 

3.1 
  

No revenue cost  

 

4 Equality and Good Relations Considerations 

4.1 There are no specific Equality and Good Relations Considerations attached to this 
report. 
 

 

5 Recommendations 

5.1 
 
 

Members are requested to note the presentation regarding the Article 31 application 
for a Combined Heat and Power Plant at Airport Road. Following the presentation, 
Members should consider if they would like to request officers to prepare a draft 
response for the Council to submit in respect of this application for consideration at a 
future meeting of this committee. 
 

Page 4



6 Decision Tracking 

 

 

7 Key to Abbreviations 

RDF - Refuse derived fuel  
CHP combined heat and power  
 

 

8 Documents attached 

Appendix 1 Application details  
Appendix 2 Article 31 Letter 
Appendix 3  BCC officer responses to date 

 
  

Page 5



Appendix 1  
 

Proposed combined heat and power (CHP) generating station for the treatment of refuse 
derived fuel (RDF) by gasification at Airport Road, Belfast 
 
 
Development Proposal 
On 13 December 2012, Bombardier Aerospace submitted a planning application (Z/2012/1387/F) 
to DOE for the proposed construction and operation of a combined heat and power generating 
station for the treatment of refuse derived fuel (RDF) by gasification at 7 Airport Road, Belfast.  A 
Supporting and Environmental Statement was also submitted. 
 
The proposed site is currently undeveloped scrub land bounded by a fence.  The site is located 
within Belfast Harbour Estate, an established industrial area and is accessed from Airport Road.  
Significant land uses in the surrounding area include the George Best Belfast City Airport to the 
north, Victoria Park to the south and Belfast Lough to the west. 
 
The accompanying Environmental Statement states that nearest residential area is located 
approximately 1 Kilometre from the CPH generating station boundary.   
    
 
Proposed Use 
The proposed CHP plant is designed to convert refuse derived fuel into heat and power for use in 
the Bombardier site in an effort to reduce their energy costs.  It is proposed that surplus power will 
be exported to the national grid. 
 
The refuse derived fuel which consists of non recyclable elements of commercial, industrial and 
municipal waste will be produced off site with limited processing on site.   
 
The reception hall of the proposed facility has capacity for 3,300 tonnes of RDF which provides 
sufficient material for five days operation. It is anticipated that the plant will process 240,000 tonnes 
of RDF per year.   
 
The waste for RDF production will be sourced primarily from treatment plants within the Belfast and 
surrounding areas.  The Environmental Statement states that there is currently sufficient waste 
locally in the surrounding area to fuel the plant.  Furthermore, it is noted that the facility is not 
reliant on the arc21 Waste Management Group providing waste. 
 
 
Design 
The main CPH building on the site will be approximately 27.7m high, 193.3m in length and 105.5m 
wide.   
 
Two stacks of approximately 4m diameter will extend to a height of 42m (48mAOD) at the 
northeast elevation of the building, which is reported in the Environmental Statement as the optimal 
height and location for the stacks relative to the surrounding environs, air dispersion modelling and 
proximity to the airport. 
 
 
  

Page 6



Traffic  

The existing access road from Airport Road will be extended to provide access. This will comprise 
a 7.3m wide industrial distributor road to match the existing access roads.  The roads will allow 
access to the building and provide a queuing area for vehicles entering the facility.  
 
RDF arriving at the site will be transported mainly by 32 tonne and 44 tonne gross heavy goods 
vehicles.  It is envisaged that there will be around 49 deliveries per day.   
 
HGV movements are to avoid import and export through the Dee Street Junction between the 
weekday hours of 7.00am - 9.00am and 4.30pm - 6.00pm.  
 
Car parking for 21 vehicles will be provided on site allowing for 15 cars for operatives and 6 cars 
for visitors.  
 
 
Construction Phase 
Construction of the facility is expected to take eighteen months.  Construction operations are 
planned to take place between 7.00am and 7.00pm Monday to Friday and 7.30am to 2:30pm on 
Saturdays.  It is noted that certain works may be necessary outside these periods, for example, 
lifting of chimney sections into place which will be required when the Airport is not operational.   
 
It is also noted that during construction of the stacks it is likely that infringement into the Airport’s 
Inner Horizontal Surface will be required by tall plant or cranes however the Construction 
Management Plan will be agreed with the George Best City Airport.      
 

 

Operational Phase 
Waste deliveries to the site will generally take place on Monday to Fridays between 9:00am - 
4.30pm and on Saturdays between 9.00am - 3.30pm. It is noted that occasional waste deliveries 
may be necessary outside these periods to ensure adequate fuel supply, but will be set to a 
minimum.  
 
The operation of the plant is automatic therefore the human input is reduced to minimum.   
 
Following complete combustion of the RDF an ash residue accumulates in a pit at the bottom of a 
combustion chamber.  Fly ash production is expected to be around 1,500 tonnes per annum and 
will be sent for treatment at an external waste treatment facility with the treated fly ash being 
landfilled.  This process is expected to take place in the UK mainland.   

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 9



Page 10



 

  
     ST/NG/237300       Barbara Fletcher 
 
      Z/2012/1387/F     3385 
           

                            15/02/2013                             Appendix 3 

The Divisional Planning Manager 
Belfast Area Planning Office  
Local Planning Division 
Department of the Environment 
Bedford House 
16-22 Bedford Street 
Belfast 
BT2 7FD 
 
Dear Sir/Madam 
 
RE: 7 AIRPORT ROAD, BELFAST, BT3 9DY 
CONSTRUCTION AND OPERATION OF A COMBINED HEAT AND POWER GENERATING STATION 
FOR THE TREATMENT OF REFUSE DERIVED FUEL (RDF) BY GASIFICATION 
 
This consultation response considers the proposed construction and operation of a combined heal and power generating 

station for the treatment of refuse derived fuel by gasification in terms of noise impact, air pollution, ambient air quality, 

contaminated land and general amenity. 

 

It is understood that the proposed Combined Heat and Power plant is subject to control under the Pollution Prevention 
and Control (Industrial Emissions) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2012. Accordingly, this aspect will be 
considered by the Northern Ireland Environment Agency Industrial Pollution and Radiochemical Inspectorate. 
 
In relation to the above planning application the Environmental Protection Unit of the Health and 
Environmental Services Department has received and reviewed the following document submitted by the 
applicant in support of this application: 
 

• An environmental impact statement report prepared by Grontmij titled ‘Bombardier  
planning application for the construction and operation of a combined heat and power   generating 
station for the treatment of refuse derived fuel (RDF) by gasification’ dated December 2012.   

 
The Unit’s technical responses concerning the submitted environmental reports in support of the above proposed are 

contained within Appendix 1-3 of this document. 

 

APPENDIX 1 – Noise Assessment 

APPENDIX 2 – Air Quality Impact Assessment  

APPENDIX 3 – Contaminated Land Risk Assessment     

 
 
 
 
 

Page 11



 
Consequently, on the basis of the information submitted and in the event that planning permission is to be 
granted I would request that the following conditions are attached:  
 

NOISE: 
 

1. Prior to commencement of each phase of construction the appointed contractors shall 
prepare and submit to Planning Service a detailed method statement for the project.  This 
shall include a noise and vibration impact assessment of potential noisy operations and 
outline mitigation measures proposed.  The assessment shall be used to help inform the 
development of the construction methods.  This shall have regard to the potential damage, 
nuisance or interruption to production at adjacent commercial and industrial activities due to 
piling operations. 
 
Reason: Protection of human health  

 
2. The noise mitigation strategy and mitigation measures as outlined in section 6.0 – 6.2 of the 

report must be fully incorporated into the development in order to mitigate the impact from 
process noise. 
 
Reason: Protection of human health  

 
3. Prior to operation of the proposed development the applicant must submit to Planning 

Service a noise verification report which demonstrates the successful implement of the 
mitigation measures outlined section 6 of the Airshed report.  Furthermore the verification 
report must confirm that the process has no negative impact on the amenity of the nearest 
residents from noise associated with the process. 

 
      Reason: Protection of human health  

 

CONTAMINATED LAND: 

 

4. Prior to any development commencing, the applicant must submit a detailed 
Remediation Strategy outlining the measures to be undertaken to ensure that on-site 
land and water contamination does not pose a potential risk to human health and that 
all identified pollution linkages will be demonstrably broken. This detailed 
Remediation Strategy must be submitted to Planning Service and agreed in writing 
by Belfast City Council’s Environmental Protection Unit prior to any commencement 
of development for this site.  This Remediation Strategy must include as a minimum:  

 
a. Detailed design of the gas protection measures to be incorporated into the proposed 

development, including the presentation of relevant venting calculations. 
b. Confirmation of the final development layout and a proposed design / make up for the clean 

cover to be placed in landscaped areas. 
c. A proposed Verification Plan, including as a minimum proposals for: the supervision of 

remediation works; any relevant sampling / testing; and relevant record keeping. 
d. The proposed specification of water supply pipes to be used in the development in line with 

relevant UKWIR guidance. 
 

            Reason: Protection of human health  
 
 
 
 
 
 
            
 

Page 12



5. Prior to the occupation of the proposed development, the applicant shall provide to 
Planning Service, for approval, a Verification Report in relation to the management of 
land contamination. The Verification Report shall demonstrate the successful 
completion of remediation works and that the site is now fit for end-use 
(Commercial).  It must demonstrate that the identified potential pollutant linkages are 
effectively broken.  The Verification Report shall be in accordance with current best 
practice and guidance as outlined by the Environment Agency. 

 
This report must demonstrate that the remediation measures outlined in the agreed 
Remediation Strategy have been implemented.  
 
 Reason: Protection of human health 

 

6. In the event that contamination not previously considered is encountered during the 
approved development of this site, the development shall cease and a written report 
detailing the nature of this contamination and its management must be submitted to 
Planning Service for approval.  This investigation and risk assessment must be 
undertaken in accordance with current best practice. 
 

            Reason: Protection of human health  
 

In relation to contaminated land this Unit requests that the following informative is attached to any 
planning permission granted: 
 

• CLEAN NEIGHBOURHOODS AND ENVIRONMENT ACT (NI) 2011 
 
The applicant is advised that the proposed commencement of Part III of the Waste and 
Contaminated Land (NI) Order 1997 may introduce retrospective environmental liabilities to the 
applicant following the development of this site. The comments provided by Belfast City Council 
are without prejudice to any future statutory control which may be required under Part III or any 
other future environmental legislation.  It remains the responsibility of the developer to undertake 
and demonstrate that the works have been effective in managing all risks.  Failure to provide a 
satisfactory Verification Report may lead to the assumption that the site still poses a risk to 
human health and it may be subject to further action under forthcoming legislation. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 13



APPENDIX 1 NOISE ASSESSMENT - TECHNICAL RESPONSE FROM BELFAST CITY COUNCIL 
 
 
Chapter 12 of the above mentioned noise impact assessment report for the proposed CHP generating station 
considered the effects of the noise from construction, sleep disturbance to local residents, loss of amenity 
and nuisance from increased noise levels and noise from traffic. 
 
It is noted that the nearest residential areas are located more than 1,000 metres from the proposed 
development.  The main process building will be up to 27 metres in height and will house the waste reception 
area, gasifiers, flue gas treatment and steam turbines.  The Airshed noise report advises the main noise 
source is potentially from the cooling plant, which will be located outside the process building.  This process 
is to operate 24 hours therefore night time noise is the main cause of concern.  It is also noted that noise 
levels have been predicted using ISO 9613-2 as implemented by Sound Plan 7.1. 
 
The Airshed noise assessment report advises that results from assessment predicted that the worst case 
noise process levels will be 36dB LAr 5 minutes. The report also advises therefore that the predicated process 
noise is well below the background noise level 40dB LA 90 and the WHO night time criteria of 45 dB LA eq 8 

hours at all sensitive receptors. 
 
The Airshed noise report advises that with appropriate mitigation and by containment and specification of 
quiet external cooling plant, the proposed scheme is predicated to be <37dB LA eq 1 hours at all sensitive 
receptors. 
 
The report concluded that the ‘process noise’ contribution from the proposed installation is likely to be 
insignificant at all sensitive receptors subject to the successful implementation of the mitigation measures set 
out in Section 6. 
 
Further more the Airshed noise report also makes a number of recommendations to minimise the  impact of 
noise and vibration during the construction phase. 
 
 
 
 
 
            
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 14



APPENDIX 2 – AIR QUALITY IMPACT ASSESSEMENT – TECHNICAL RESPONSE FROM BELFAST 

CITY COUNCIL 
 
Chapter 10 of the Environmental Impact Assessment and its Appendices describe the Air Quality Impact 
Assessment for the development. The Assessment addresses air quality impacts connected with the site’s 
permitting as a process under the Pollution Prevention and Control (Industrial Emissions) Regulations 
(Northern Ireland) 2012 as well as ambient pollution prescribed via the Air Quality Strategy for England, 
Scotland, Wales and Northern Ireland and Part III of the Environment (Northern Ireland) Order 2002. 
Permitting of the proposed Combined Heat and Power Plant under the Pollution Prevention and Control 
(Industrial Emissions) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2012 will be dealt with by the Northern Ireland 
Environment Agency Industrial Pollution and Radiochemical Inspectorate.   
 
Part III of the Environment (Northern Ireland) Order 2002 establishes a statutory duty upon Northern Ireland 
district councils to periodically review, assess and manage air quality for a range of common ambient 
pollutants. A series of heath-based standards for these pollutants, that are designed to protect the public and 
the environment, are detailed within the Air Quality Strategy for England, Scotland, Wales and Northern 
Ireland. Accordingly, this Unit’s response will focus primarily upon the assessment of ambient pollutants 
prescribed within the Air Quality Strategy for England, Scotland, Wales and Northern Ireland and the Air 
Quality Standards Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2010. 
 
The consultant has utilised a combination of Cambridge Environmental Research Consultant’s Atmospheric 
Dispersion Modelling Software Version 4.2 to assess the impact of the Generating Station’s industrial 
emissions and Version 3.1 to assess transport impacts associated the Generating Station’s operation. 
Modelling has been undertaken for 18 relevant receptor locations for both long and short term exposure in 
accordance with government’s Local Air Quality Management Technical Guidance LAQM.TG(09). 
 
Nitrogen dioxide (NO2) and particulate matter (PM10) background data for the modelling studies has been 
derived from data published by the Department of Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (Defra). It is assumed 
that the background data relates to the recently published 2010 dataset. 
 
However, the consultant has stated that there is little information available for ambient heavy metal 
concentrations in Northern Ireland. It should be noted that Belfast City Council has undertaken ambient 
heavy metal monitoring at the Belfast Centre AURN site, as part of the UK’s Urban Heavy Metals network, 
since 2008. Monthly data for this site is available for copper, lead, zinc, iron, arsenic, cadmium, chromium, 
cobalt, nickel, manganese, platinum, selenium and vanadium as well as mercury in PM10 and gaseous 
mercury. Accordingly, it appears that concentrations of ambient heavy metal pollutants may not have been 
fully assessed in the Air Quality Impact Assessment in terms of respective target values for total metal 
content in the PM10 fraction, averaged over a calendar year. 
 
Similarly, concentrations of dioxins, including all 17 toxic 2,3,7,8 polychlorinated dioxin and furan cogeners, 
were assessed at the Belfast Clara Street site as part of the UK’s Toxic Organic Micro Pollutants (TOMPS) 
network from 2001 to 2007. This data could have been interpreted in order to provide a more complete 
assessment of the impact of the proposed development upon ambient dioxin concentrations.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 15



Notwithstanding these issues, the Unit is satisfied that having regard to the modelling outputs for heavy 
metals and dioxins, the location of relevant human receptors and local ambient monitoring data, there is little 
likelihood of the proposed development resulting in exceedences of relevant air quality objectives or 
European Commission target values.          
 
The consultant has assessed the predicted impact of the proposed Generating Station development on 
human health in terms of nitrogen dioxide, sulphur dioxide and particulate matter. Modelling was undertaken 
both for short and longer objectives and the outputs of the modelling have been summarised in the 
Appendices to the Air Quality Impact Assessment. A modelling sensitivity analysis has also been completed. 
 
Modelling data indicates that the proposed development will result in a modest increase (1mgm

-3
) in annual 

mean nitrogen dioxide concentrations as a worst-case scenario. Given that the maximum reported nitrogen 
dioxide background concentration in the vicinity of the development is around 25mgm

-3
, there is little 

likelihood of exceedences of the 40mgm
-3

 annual mean objective at relevant receptors. A similar situation is 
reported in respect exceedences of the nitrogen dioxide 200mgm

-3
 1-hour mean objective. Transport impacts 

of the development have been assessed for the nearby Sydenham By-Pass. The consultant has reported 
that the increase in the nitrogen dioxide annual mean concentrations associated with the development along 
the Sydenham By-Pass will be less than 1%. 
 
Sulphur dioxide concentrations have been assessed in terms of the 15-minute mean objective however, it 
appears that the 1-hour and 24-hour mean objectives have not been considered. The proposed development 
is projected to add a maximum of 21mgm

-3
 to the 99.9

%ile
 of 15-minute mean concentrations at relevant 

receptors. Therefore, given the low concentrations of ambient sulphur dioxide monitored at the Belfast Centre 
site, this Department is content that the proposed development will be unlikely to give rise to exceedences of 
the sulphur dioxide 15-minute mean objective at relevant receptors.  
 
Modelling data indicates that the proposed development will result in an increase of around 0.07mgm

-3
 in the 

annual mean particulate matter (PM10) concentrations. Given that the reported maximum particulate matter 
background concentration in the vicinity of the development is around 16mgm

-3
, there is little likelihood of 

exceedences of the 40mgm
-3

 annual mean objective at relevant receptors. Similarly, maximum 24-hour 
means are predicted to increase by around 0.03mgm

-3
 at relevant receptors, providing little likelihood of 

exceedences of the 50mgm
-3

 90.41
%ile

 of daily means objective.    
 
 A similar situation exists for PM2.5 where maximum annual mean concentrations are predicted to increase by 
around 0.1mgm

-3
 to around 9.9mgm

-3
 with the proposed development in place. These levels are significantly 

below the 25µgm
-3

 annual mean gravimetric target to be achieved by 2020. 
 
Accordingly, based upon the outcome of the modelling studies, this Department is content that ambient 
emissions from the proposed Combined Heat and Power Generating Station are unlikely to lead to 
exceedences of air quality objectives at relevant receptors. As a result, this Department has no concerns 
regarding the air quality impacts of the development proposal. 
 
 
 
            
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 16



APPENDIX 3 CONTAMINATED LAND - TECHNICAL RESPONSE FROM BELFAST CITY COUNCIL 

 
� Chapter 14 (Geology, Ground Conditions and Hydrogeology) of a Grontmij Environmental Statement 

titled Planning Application for the Construction and Operation of a Combined Heat & Power 
Generating Station for the Treatment of Refuse Derived Fuel (RDF) by Gasification – Supporting & 
Environmental Statements, December 2012   

� Appendix I to Chapter 14 of the above report, titled Geotechnical and Geoenvironmental 
Interpretative Site Investigation Report 

� A letter of clarification from Grontmij dated 8
th
 February 2013.   

 
With respect to the risks posed to human health / public health, this Unit makes the following comments: 
 
Preliminary Risk Assessment (PRA) 
The PRA identified a number of potential contamination sources relating to the site and the surrounding area, 
including: engineering works and other industrial facilities; reclaimed land and a refuse site; an electricity 
substation; and natural alluvial deposits (a possible source of ground gas).  The site itself was also found to 
have been subject to previous unidentified usage.  Upon consideration of this, the site’s environmental setting 
and the detail of the proposed development in line with current contaminated land risk assessment guidance 
(CLR11), Grontmij identified potential pollutant linkages and therefore determined that an intrusive site 
investigation followed by a Quantitative Risk Assessment would need to be undertaken. 
 
Site Investigation 
Subsequently, a generally thorough site investigation was undertaken, comprising: the drilling of 6 boreholes; 
installation of 10 monitoring standpipes; laboratory analysis of a total of 48 soil samples for a suite of relevant 
contaminants of concern; laboratory analysis of a total of 32 groundwater samples for a suite of relevant 
contaminants of concern; and the monitoring of ground gases on a total of 8 occasions. 
 
The site investigation works confirmed the anticipated geological succession beneath the site as comprising 
made ground overlying natural alluvial and glacial deposits. Groundwater flow was determined to be from the 
northeast to the southwest. 
 
It is noted that the identified electricity substation, which is present in the southwest corner of the site and 
which was deemed a potential contamination source in the PRA, was not targeted during the site 
investigation works.  However, justification for this and clarifications on the risks posed by, and to, the 
substation was subsequently provided.     
 
Quantitative Risk Assessment 
Quantitative assessment of the soil data collected during the site investigation, and additional soil data 
collected during a previous site investigation, using relevant and defensible Generic Assessment Criteria 
(GAC) for Commercial end uses revealed that relevant GAC were only exceeded in one sample (BH3 at 
3.0mbgl).   
 
Exceedences were noted for lead (1130mg/kg vs. a GAC of 750mg/kg), mercury (16.3mg/kg vs. a GAC of 
11mg/kg) and asbestos (fibres detected).  However, Grontmij concluded that these occurrences were at 
‘sufficient depth below proposed formation levels to not be of significance to human health’.  
 
 
Chemical analysis results revealed that shallow groundwater beneath the site is of slightly reduced quality 
and that deeper groundwater within the natural strata beneath the site, although generally not of reduced 
quality, was found to contain minor occurrences of PAHs and a small number of VOCs.  However, 
concentrations of all potentially volatile contaminants fell below relevant GAC with respect to the assessment 
of the risks posed to future site users through vapour release.  Grontmij therefore concluded that ‘no risk is 
posed to future site users by the identified VOCs in groundwater’.   
 
Quantitative assessment of ground gas data collected during the site investigation, and additional ground 
data collected during a previous site investigation, using a relevant and defensible assessment methodology 
(as presented in CIRIA C665) indicated that the gassing regime at the site would be considered to fall under 
the classification ‘Characteristic Situation 4’ and, therefore, that ‘appropriate ground gas protection measures 
[should be] included within the development’. 

Page 17



 
Although no quantitative assessment was undertaken, the report highlighted that construction workers could 
be exposed to subsurface contaminants during redevelopment works. 
 
Remediation Recommendations 
Within Grontmij’s Geotechnical and Geoenvironmental Interpretative Site Investigation Report outline 
remediation recommendations are presented.  Relevant remediation recommendations with respect to the 
protection of human health include: 
 

• The incorporation of sufficient gas protection measures into the proposed buildings to protect 
against a ‘Characteristic Situation 4’ gassing regime; 

• The inclusion of appropriate mitigation measures within construction management health and 
safety plans to reduce the risk of exposure to site staff to subsurface contaminants; and 

• Further reduction of the risk posed to future site users through the emplacement of hard 
standings and the placement of clean cover to areas of landscaping. 

 
In addition, in relation to the identified risks to the wider environment, this Unit recommends that Planning 
Service seek the views of the Land & Resource Management, Northern Ireland Environment Agency, 
Klondyke Building, Cromac Avenue, Gasworks Business Park, Ormeau Road, Belfast BT7 2JA.  
 
 
Yours sincerely, 
 
 
 
Barbara Fletcher 
Environmental Health Officer 
Environmental Protection Unit 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 18



Town Planning Committee 
 

Thursday 15 August 2013 
 
 

Routine Correspondence 
 

 
 
 
The Committee’s comments, if any, are sought in respect of the undernoted 
matters – copies of which will be available at the meeting for perusal:  
 
Roads Service 
 

• Notification of the proposed Abandonment at Portmore Hill;  
 

• Draft order, location map and Statutory Notice of Intention in relation to the 
Abandonment of Public Rights of Way, The Shore Road, Belfast 
(Abandonment) Order (Northern Ireland) 2013; and 
 

• Notification of the intention to amend existing On-Street Electric Vehicles 
Order. 
 
  

Taylor Patterson, Chartered Surveyors 
 

• Pre-planning application consultations for mobile phone base station 
upgrades in various locations throughout the City.   

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Committee will be advised of any additional information received at the 

meeting. 
 

Agenda Item 3Page 19



Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 3aPage 21



Page 22



Town Planning Committee 
 

15 August 2013 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

List of planning applications received by the 
Divisional Planning Manager for the period from 

23 July until 8 August 2013    

    

Agenda Item 5Page 23



Page 24

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 6Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60

This page is intentionally left blank



Schedule 

of 

Applications 

Agenda Item 8Page 61



Page 62

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70


	Agenda
	2 Major Planning Application under Article 31 - 7 Airport Road
	Appendix 2 - Article 31  7 Airport Road
	Appendix 3 - Article 31 Bombardier

	3 Routine Correspondence
	3a Major Planning Application under Article 31 - Lands at 88 to 104 Andersonstown Road
	5 New Applications
	Belfast Valid_Planning_Applications 23rd July to 8th August

	6 Deferred Items Still Under Consideration
	7 Streamlined Planning Applications - Decisions Issued
	8 Schedule of Applications
	Schedule


